
Indian River County Purchasing Division 
purchasing@indianriver.gov  

ADDENDUM NO. 5 

Issue Date:  January 11, 2024 

Project Name: Solid Waste and Recyclables Collection Services 

RFP Number: 2024020 

RFP Opening Date: January 31, 2024

This addendum is being released to respond to questions received to date. 

The information and documents contained in this addendum are hereby incorporated in the request for 
proposal. This addendum must be acknowledged where indicated on the Proposer Information Form, 
or the proposal may be declared non-responsive.

Questions and Answers 

1. 
On the reference forms there is a request for total number of complaints, etc.  What is the time 
range requested?  Could it be for a limited time frame? 

A: As stated on the Service Reference Form responses should be for the “Total Number of 
Complaints per Contract.”  Should the contract be ongoing (current), Proposers shall submit the 
Total Number of Complaints per Contract to date of proposal submittal and note the date on the 
form. 

2. 
Can the County please provide the number of units that have subscribed for solid waste services for 
each of the past 3 years? 

A: No. Data is not readily available.  However, it is estimated subscription services have remained 
steady around 70% under the current contract.  Should Option 1 or 3 (Subscription Service) be 
selected, it is SWDD’s intent that services under any newly awarded contract be marketed 
appropriately to customers by Franchisee and subscription rates steadily increase.   

3. Can the County please provide the tip fee/processing fee for materials at the SWDD Facility? 

 A: Please see attached rate sheet of current fees. 

4. How will contractors be compensated for the service of additional carts? 
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A: See Section 6.5.2 and 6.5.4 on page 17 of the Sample Agreement.  Franchisee shall bill 
customers directly for the service according to pricing established in final agreement. 

5. 
Can the County please confirm if a hauler is allowed to submit more than the 4 required number of 
references? 

 A: No, please adhere to the 4 required number of references.  

6. 
Can the County confirm if carts at Government Buildings and Facilities can be collected with 
residential routes? 

A: Yes.  SWDD confirms.  However, this mixing may only occur with carted materials.  Government 
Buildings and facilities materials in dumpsters shall not be collected with residential routes.   

7. 
Can the County please provide the number and amount of administrative fines/liquidated damages 
assessed for each material collection for each of the past 2 years? 

A: No, Administrative Charges are based on a violation of contract not material picked up.  To help 
Proposers understand recent fines, the Administrative Charges from January 2023 – June 2023 
were $31,150.00.  

8. Could the County please provide the last 6 months of invoices paid to the actual incumbent? 

A: Yes. See PDF of invoices for collection at government buildings paid to the incumbent for the 
last six months, as well as Residential recycling collection services (currently a universal service).  
All other current collection services are subscription based and invoiced directly between the 
incumbent and customer.    

9. 
Can the County please provide the number of routes that are run per day per material stream? 
(garbage, recycle, yard waste) 

A:  No. Data not readily available. It should be noted that routes to be run under this contract are 
not anticipated to be the same as the current contract (e.g., current contract includes Fellsmere 
and excludes Indian River Shores).  Proposers should conduct all evaluations and site visits 
necessary to establish routes to complete all services requested in the RFP. 

10. 
Can the County please provide the number of specialty trucks used by haulers for difficult areas to 
service? 

 A:  No. See answer to question 9.  

11. 
Can the County please confirm if City of Fellsmere needs to be considered for a Contractor’s 
submission or if they have not yet decided to utilize the piggyback clause? 

A:  No. Fellsmere has not decided yet therefore do not include. Any agreement with Fellsmere will 
utilize the piggyback clause to establish a completely separate contract from that of the County. 

12. 
Can the County confirm that all jurisdictions identified within “Table 1. Current Collection Services in 
Indian River County” will be eligible to subscribe for Solid Waste Services under this agreement? 
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A:  Confirmed. See Exhibit 2 – Franchise Map page 49.  However, other than Indian River Shores, 
no services will be provided to jurisdictions under this contract.  Jurisdictions seeking to piggyback 
off this contract for the same services and rates, must contract directly with the selected 
Franchisee.  The County makes no guarantee of services or future contracts with these 
jurisdictions. 

13. 
Can the County please confirm if Customer Convenience Centers will be included under this 
agreement? 

 A:  No, the Customer Convenience Centers are not included. 

14. 
Can the County please confirm that all MF units described in “Table 3. Residential Recyclables 
Collection Units – Universal / Mandatory” will receive carted recycling service under this agreement 
and that these units are separate from the MF units that utilize commercial dumpsters? 

 A: MF units in Table 3 include those receiving carted and dumpster service.    

15. 
Can the County confirm that all MF units described in “Table 2. Residential Solid Waste Collection 
Units – Subscription” are eligible for bulk collection under this agreement? 

 A: Yes. Confirmed. 

16. 
Can the County please confirm that only recycling carts for MF units must be replaced by the 
Contractor within the first 12 months of the agreement? 

A:  For purposes of evaluation, please propose as scoped.  All carts for residential units, to include 
multi-family, are to be replaced at commencement of service.  

17. 
Should a Contractor develop a “Tab 2: Technical Proposal” section for each Option described within 
the RFP or should all options be considered under one single Tab 2 section? 

A:    For clarity and the best review of the Selection Committee, it is recommended Proposers 
submit a separate Tab 2 for each service option of the RFP.  However, this is not a requirement. 

18. 
Attachment A. Current Fee Schedule – As pricing for all options are included under the existing 
agreement, is there a possibility in which the type of service is switched from subscription to 
universal or universal to subscription under the term of the agreement? 

 A:  See Article 9.1 of the Sample Agreement.   

19. 
Section 5.2 Transition Prior to Expiration of Collection Services – Can the County please clarify if 
there is a section under the current contract for the incumbent to work with the new Contractor? 

 A:  Yes.  Confirmed. 

20. Can the County confirm if bulk will be a weekly scheduled collection no matter the option selected? 

 A:  Yes.  See RFP pages 8-9 that details all Service Options. 

21. Can the County please provide the current number of rear door collection services? 
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A:  This has been provided in an Addendum in Excel spreadsheet titled “Monthly Service 
Spreadsheet.” Proposers are encouraged to review this to understand details on the current 
services to include number of rear door collection services.

22. 
On Addendum #3, there was an excel file for Equipment & Staff.  Should we complete one for each 
service option as some of the equipment/staff may change based on the service option? 

 A:  Yes.  One shall be completed for each service option.  See instructions on form. 

Attachments 
6 Month Invoice County Recycling 
6 Month Invoice Govt Bldg. Recycling 
SWDD Current Rate Sheet 
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